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iNXuaT REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATI]MENTS
EoR THE YEAR ENDED 3ot'JLrNE 202r.

I. KEY INSTITUTE INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Background information

Mukiria Technical Training Institute (MTTI) is located in Nyweri Location,Abocentral Sub-county in
Meru County. It is located 9km from Meru town towards Nkubu and 6km from Nkubu towards Meru
town. It is approximately I km off Meru-Nkubu road along Mariara stage. It occupies an area of 2.5acres
approximately. The area receives an annual rainfall of between 400mm and 600mm.The infrastructure is
generally good, therefore making the accessibility easy.

Mukiria Technical Training Institute started in 1985 as a youth polytechnic. It was assessed and upgraded
to a technical training institute by then Ministry of Higher Education Science and Technology in 201 I and

started its operations in 2013. The first intake was January 2014. The Institute offers market driven
courses in Business and Technical. The first intake was in January 2014 and the Institute has registered
tremendous growth in student population and introduction of new courses.

Mukiria T.T.I is managed by a Board of Governors (BOG) under the direction of the Ministry of
Education.It operates under the TVET Act (2013) of the Laws of Kenya as well as Constitution of Kenya
201O,KNEC Act,PSC Act,KASNEB Act,policy guidelines among others.

(b) Principal Activities

VISION

To be a Centre of Excellence in the development and provision of innovative Technical Vocation
Education and Training (TVET) programmes.

MISSION
To nurture and impact Technical Vocation Education and Training (TVET) knowledge skills and attitudes
through research, innovation and technology for self-reliance and national development.

THE CORE MANDATE
To teach and train in Technical and Vocational Education & Training; Itesearch and Innovation and
Community Servicc.

(c) Key Management

The Institute's day-to-day management is under the following key organs:

. Board of Governors

. Accounting Officer (Principal)

. Deputy Principal and

. Heads of Departments

ll
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(d) Fiduciary Managcment

T'he key managcment personnel who held office during the financi al year ended 30th June 2021 and who
had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

No. Designation Name

I Principal David M.Mwangi(up to Sep 2021)
Carolyne K. Muguna(from Sep 2021 to date)

2 Dcputy Principal Administration MutuiriJuliah Kabiru

3 Deputy Principal Academics Cecilia M Mwongera

4 Registrar Joy Nkonge

5 Finance officer Alfred Mugira (up to March 2021)
Roseline Kanyiri(from March 2021 to date)

6 Procurement officer Diana Wanja (up to lan 2021)
David Munene(from Jan202l to Date)

7 Dean of Students Antony K Ndege

8 Pcrformance contracting coordinator Veronicah Kirigo Chege

9 HoD Hospitality & Tourism Jocelyne Ntibuka Kinoti

l0 Qual ity Assurance Offi cer Doris Wangui Muturi

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

S/I.{o Name of the Committee Members

I
Finance, Operations and
Development

l.Rephah Mumbua Kitavi- C hairperson
2.Maureen Nj eri-Member
3 .Mungeria Kirimania-Member
4.David Mwangi/Carolyne K.Muguna -Secretary

2 Audits, Risk and Governance

1 . Shelmith Mugoh- Chairperson
2.Mungeria Kirimania- Member
3.Joy Riungu- Member
4.lnternal auditor-Secretarv

J Academic and Human Resource

1 .Joy Riungu- Chairperson
2.Mary Kanana-Member
3.Stanley Mwatsuma -Member
4.Margaret Nduhiu-County Director - TVET
5.David Mwangi/Carolyne K.Muguna -Secretary

lll
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-.EY INSTITUTE INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(0 Mukiria Technical Training Institutc Hcadquarters
P O Box 1093-60200
Meru
Meru- Nkubu Highway
Meru County,
Kenya.

(g) Mukiria Technical Training Institute Contacts
Telephone: (254)7 I 667 4848
E-mail : info@mukiriatechnical.ac.ke/ mukiriatechnical@gmail.com
Website : www.mukiriatechnical.ac.ke

(h) Institute Bankers

Co-operative Bank
Meru branch
P.O. Box 1328,
Meru-Kenya

National Bank
Meru Branch
P.o.Box I174
Meru-Kenya

(i) IndependcntAuditors
Auditor General
Office of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, Institute Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

fi) Principal Lcgal Adviser
The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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II. THE, BOAITD OF GOVE,IINORS

livcrlyn Mutave Chairpcrson of thc Board

Datc of birth 241091 1984
Irinancial Managcment Consultant
MSc. Irinancc & Invcstmcnts, IIA ([iconomics &
Mathcmatics), CPA (K), CPS(K)
[lxpcriencc:
9 years in financc and audit,3 ycars in rescarch.

Carolinc K. Muguna- Sccrctary of thc l]oard

['rincipal holds MI]d, Education Planning &
Marragemcnt

'a - a
!s'
Ms Joy Nyawira l{iungu -l}oard Mcmbcr

Doti:0311211974
MSc. Environmental Engincering and Management,
llSc. Agricultural llnginccring (Water and Irrigation
option)
Expcrience
I I ycars' cxpcriencc as rcscarchcr in non-scwered
sanitation

Maureen Njcri- l]oard Mcrnber

Datc of Birth: 261091 1981

Quantity Survcyor
Cc11i fi ed'l'rainer of 'l'rai nccs
lJxpcrience:
7 years' expcriencc as a profcssional Quantity
Survcyor.
4 years as 'l'rainer of Trainccs

v
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Mumbua Kitavi-BOG Member

Date ol' Birth: 08/09/1 983
Financial Managements Consultants
MSC finance and investments. B,A Economics and
Business administration CPA K,CISA
Experience
l2 years in finance and audits

{

Mary Kanana- BOG -member

Date of Birth: 0210211964
Marketing and public relations B, COM marketing
Experience
20 years ofexperience in finance and audits

Stanley Mwatsuma - Board Member

I nternational'[echnology Professional

Date of Birth: 241081 1967

Mungeria Kirimania - BOG Member

Date of Birth: 241081 1967
Professional civil engineer
Expcrience
28 years' experience in building and highway design
contract managements and maintenance

Shelmith Mugo-BOG member

Date of Birth: 281 l0l 197 I

IBA Finance, CPAK, Masters in Organizational
development (Ongoing)

Years of Experience - 28

Specialization - Commercial & Finance Expert,
Certified Professional Mediator, Certified
Productivity Coach

Memberships: A member of ICPAK, Member of
Women on Boards Network (WOBN), Accredited
Mediator - Mediation Accreditation committee
(MAc)

VI
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III. MANAGEMENT TEAM

No. Designation

I

Carolinc K. Muguna

Principal holds Mlld, Education Planning &
Management

2

Cecilia M Mwongera

Deputy Principalacademics holds BED science
physics and mathematics

.,

MutuiriJuliah Kabiru

Dcputy principal administration holds llEd home
cconomics,Mlrd Guidance and Counselling

4

Joy Nkongc

Registrar
Ilolds BEd An and linguistic

5

Roseline Kanyiri

lrinance officer
I'lolds CPA.K and Degree in Bachelor of
Commerce

vll
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Designation

David Munene

Procurement Officer
holds Degree in Supply chain Managements, A
Member of KISM.

7

Antony K Ndege

Dean of Students
holds BSc General Agriculture

8

Veronicah Kirigo Chege

Performance Contracting Coordinator. holds BSc
fashion design and clothing technology

9

Doris WanguiMuturi

Quality assurance officer holds BSc building
and civil engineering

vlll
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IV. CHAIRMAN'SSTATEMENT

I am pleased to prescnt thc annual rcport and financial statement of Mukiria Technical Training Institute
for the year cnded 30tn Junc 2021. The year started with a lot of challenges due to effect of covid 19
pandemic where trainecs werc traincd online but towards thc beginning of January 2021 the activities
rcsumed normally.

Itight from its inception to now, Mukiria Technical Training Institute has matched forward to spread the
light of education and pave the path of academic excellence for every student. The demand for TVET
programmes in the country has continued to rise prompting the institution to continually introduce
academic programmes that respond to the demand of thc market. The objective of the board is to position
the Institute main programmes within the context of the market requirements, cost rationalisation, equity
and customer satisfaction.

During the financial year 2020/2021period, key achievements were realized, thesc are:
o Incrcascd student's enrolment from 2488 to 2941.
. Establish and Strcngthened collaboration and liaison with key local industries where the Institute

can attach its trainces.
o Established collaboration with othcr fVEl- institutions.
. Established public private partnership to addrcss the shortage of accommodation spaces for the

increased population growth.
. Participated in KA'I'TI activities at regional levels.
o Strengthened marketing strategies which prompted population growth.
o Established a conducive environment which led to excellent performance in exams and curriculum

activities.
. Ensured competent students leaders were clected and inaugurated in their respective offices.
. Recruitment of competent and profcssional key officers.

'l'he aim of Mukiria 'l'echnical 'l'raining Institute is to produce skilled globally competitive employable
and self-reliant human resource. l'o achieve this, our highly committed staff and trainees aim even higher
and work tirelessly to remain at the pinnaclc of thcir achievements.

'l'he Institute rcceived HELII loans /bursary and GoK capitation for the trainees. 'fhis funding has enabled
the Institute acquirc cquipment that will make it go a long way in ensuring that trainees are equipped with
relevant skills therefore increasing their marketability.

I thank the Government for its financial support so far that has made it possible to implement the Core
mandate of the Institute. The Board of Govemors is committed to provide visionary leadership and take
the Institute to the next level. 'l'he Iloard of Governors is robust in resource mobilization and aims to
transforming the current status of the Institute in line with the Strategic PIan 2019-2023. I welcome all on
board as we endeavor to undertake major projects to develop this Institute.

-l

)1 ,r-{-

Albert Kobia Wakamau

Chairpcrson of the Iloard

tx
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. REPORT OF THE PRINCIPAL
Presented herein is the Annual report and financial statement of Mukiria 'fcchnical Training Institute for
the year ended 30th June 2021 as per requircments of thc Public Financc Management Act of 2012 and
Public Audit Act, 2015.

Non-financial information
(a) Academic programme
During the financial year under review the Institute had 9 Academic programmes. Namely:

l. Business department
2. Information Communication Technology
3. Automotive Engineering
4. Cosmetology.
5. Building technology
6. Hospitality and Tourism
7. Fashion Dcsign
8. Electrical and electronics
9. Agriculturc.

(b) Student population
The Institute admits students allocated by KUCCPS, walk in placements and outsourcing them lrom high
population catchment areas. By the end of the 202012021 financial year, thc Institute had a population of
2941 trainees . The number is expectcd to rise to ovcr 3500 trainees in thc 202112022 financial year. This
will be achieved through:

o Aggressive marketing of the institute programmes.
o Expansion of the institute training facilities to accommodate more trainees.
o Mounting of academic programmes that are markct demand drivcn.
o Improved internal and extcrnal academic performance
o Strengthened collaborations with local industrials and other institutions of higher lcarning

(c) ISO/ISMS Certification
The Institute continued to maintain its ISO 9001 :2015 & ISMS certification in the year under review. This
certification led to improved internal operations mainly because the documented procedures are

articulately followed and are being complied with. Intcrnal audits wcre conducted in the year to determine
the level of adherence with the ISO/ISMS and QMS proccdures.

(d) Provision of rcquisite facilities.
As a strategy to increase competitive advantage, thc management of the institute continucd to expand the
existing facilities to attract and accommodate more studcnts.

(d) Performance contract
In the financial year 2020/2021, the institute made the following achievements;

o Increased exam performance index from 49.9Yo to 74.97Yo.

o Increased students' enrolment from 2488 to 2941.
o Renovated and Equipped workshops such as:

x
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o Implemented Covid l9 preparedness measures.

o Reviewed and translated the Citizens' Delivery Charter to English and Kiswahili
o Upgraded thc website to publicise the institution.
o Introduced and implemented online training.
o Improved IC'f infrasructures.
o Equippcd Library and Agriculturc departments.

o Capacity Iluilding for Guidance & Counselling committees.
o Overseen the construction of Igembe TVC 50%.

Challenges that hindcred 100% achievement of the targets during the year include:
o Lack ofsufficient resourccs.

o Disruption of the school calendar year caused by COVID-19 Pandemic.

(e) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The institute embarked on the following CSR activities within the year

o Hiring thc community on casual basis

o Mentorshipprogrammes.

Financial information

During the financial year under review, the institute rcalized a surplus of Kshs. 36,205,682compared to the
surplus of kshs 6,173,045 for the year ended on 30th June 2020.
This has been attributed to increased trainees population and receivables from exchange & non exchange
transactions.

On behalf of the management and staff of the institute, I take this opportunity to thank the Board of
Governors for the support accorded to the key management and for their visionary direction in
development of thc institute.

I appreciate thc support from the Ministry of Education and the County Government through -out the year
under review though we appeal for more support especially for the purpose of establishing suitable
facilities required towards becoming the TVET of choice for trainers and trainees in Kenya and beyond.

I thank all the staff and trainees of the Institute for thcir continued cooperation in this challenging but
noble task of building the Institutc and ensuring thc achievement of its corc mandate. I look forward to the
same cooperation and enthusiastic participation in202112022 ftnancial year.

g^S" \.! _

Li.!r

Mrs.Carolyne K. Muguna
PrincipaUSccrctarv to the Iloard
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STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

Section 8l Subsection 2 (f) of the Public Financc Management Act, 2012 requires thc accounting officer
to include in the financial statement, a statcment of the national government Institute's performance

against predetermined objectives.
Mukiria Technical training institute has 5 strategic pillars and objectives within currcnt Strategic Plan for
the FY 2018-2023. These strategic pillars are as follows:

. Pillar l: Governance
o Pillar 2: Access and equity

o Pillar 3: Physical Infrastructure

o Pillar 4: Training and research

. Pillar 5: Collaboration

Mukiria TTI develops its annual work plans based on the above 5 pillars. Asscssment of the Board's
performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The Insliture achieved its
performance targets set for the FY 2020121 pcriod for its 5 strategic pillars, as indicatcd in the diagram

below:
Strategic
Pillar

Objectivc Kcy
Performance
Indicators

Activities Achievemcnts/
output

Pillar l:
Governance

Improve
institutional
corporate
governance

a Developed
Policies

a Compctent
lcadcrs

a Competent
Irinance and
Procure ment
officers

a Review all
institutional
policies to align
with the strategic
plan.
Carry out capacity
building for the
'l'op Managemenl
and the Staff on
leadcrship.
Carryout
Benchmarking on
leadership,
finance,
procurement and
curriculum
implementation.
Develop and issue

Job descriptions
to all staff in the
institute.

a

a

a Rcviewed policies

Capacity building
for staff undertaken

a Bcnchmarking
carried out

a staff Job
descriptions
developed

Mobilize
financial
resource to fund
strategic plan

a Proposals a Preparc and
present 3

proposals pcr year
for funding to thc
government
through the MoE
Enhancea

a More funding for
thc Institute

Income generating
activities enhanced

a

xll
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lncome
generating
activities

Pillar 2:
Access and
equity

ncrease student
llment

a Student
enrollment
increased

a Marketing
through
advertisements,
use of posters and

brochures,
Participation in
trade fairs and
exhibitions and
one on one
meeting.
Introduce new
programme
Sensitize students
and parents on
various avenues

a

a

a

a

of funding
Capacity building
and training of
staff

a Increased student
population and
branding of the
Institution

Promote equity on
the programs
rffered in the
institute

a Sensitization or
the programs
offered in thc
institute
Industrial
exposure through
educational trips

a

o Electronic and
Print

o Advertisements
o Print outs of

brochures

illar 3

ical
nfrastructure

Improve and
expand
Institutional
Infrastructure

a Workshops,
lecture rooms
and ICT
infrastructure
improved

a Complete the
electrical
mechanical
workshop
Equip the library
Equip all thc
academic
departments
Maintain currenl
infrastructure in
good condition
Construct a

tuition block with
a library and ICI-
lab.

Construct a food
and beverage
complex
Acquire
additional 2 acres
of land

Construct a
tuition block

a

a

a

a

a

a Workshops,
Iecture rooms and
ICT
infrastructure in
place

xlll
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funded by the
board

Pillar 4:
Iraining and
research

lntroduce new
academic
programs

a Increased learning
programs

Establish general
agriculture
program
Establish at least
2 CI]ET
curriculum

a

a Increased student
population

Streamline
curriculum-based
research

Projects
undertaken and
written

a Assign trainee's
supervisors
during research
project writing
Purchase research
guide books
Establish research
coordinator office

a

a

a Well-coordinated
project writing
process

Enhance
innovation

a Innovations
developed

a Participate during
innovation
competitions
Patenting of
innovations

a

a students acquire
more knowledge

Pillar 5:

Collaboratio
n

Enhance
collaboration with
the industry

a Signed MoU"s o Sensitization on

skills offered al

the institute
. Sign MoUs
. Timely feedback
r Timely

information
. Competent

personnel
handling
information

Cordial
relationship with
industries

xlv
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VII. CORPORATE GOVEITNANCE STATEMENT

The mandatc of 'l'VE'l'in Kenya is spelt out in thc I'VE'l- Act.20l3. Ilvery l'VET Institution is governed by a
governing body in thc form of a lloard ol Govcrnors (llOG) which is responsible for providing the required
leadership in dcveloping appropriate plans and strategies that will contribute to a sustainable execution of its
mandate to satisfy thc socioeconomic advanccmcnt of the nation and the region. Each Institution is headed by a

Principal, who acls as the sccrctary to thc governing []OG. The I]OG consists of thc Chairperson and other
mcmbcrs as spclt out in thc exisling Act. In Kcnya, the'l'VE'l'Act 2013 givcs the cornposition of the BOG as

follows:
(a) A chairperson;

(b) A rcpresentative of the PS in the Ministry responsible for TVET.
(c) A representative of the Governor in the county
(d) Six othcr persons appointed from the fields of;

(i) Lcadcrship and managcmcnt;
(ii) Irinancial management;
(iii)'l'cchnology;
(iv) Industry;
(v) Ilngincering;
(V I I n lorrnation Com mu n ication'l'cchnology/lcgal

'l-hcrc must bc at lcast two thirds gcndcr rcprcsentation in the membership.
The tlOG mects quartcrly on avcrage, with a three-ycar term renewablc once and for mcmory, one or two members
are rc-appointcd. 'l'hc UOG havc working sub-commitlees likc;

i. Academic and I-luman Resource,

ii. liinancc, Operations and Developmcnt
iii. Audit and Risk Govcrnance.

'l'he Sub-Committees can co-opt pcrsons of special expertise during their deliberations.
At the operational level, thc Principal/Director is the team Ieader (CEO) assisted by the Deputy
Principal(s)/Dircctor(s) to ensure a smooth work/lcarning environment. For propcr management and mentorship for
sustainability, he/shc appoints dcpartmental heads, scction heads and supervisors at each operational area. Together,
the tcam ensurcs sustainable quality, acccss, relevance and equity in the programs and services offered to its
customers and a back and forth smooth flow ol'feedback.
Each institution has clearly espoused i1s mandate in its statements of intcntion in the form of Vision, Mission and
core values. 'l'hcre also cxists a documentcd Strategic Plan (SP) with achievable strategic objectives with ctear
strategies and goals.'l'hc achievcment of thcse objectives is monitored at the operational levels through measurable
documcnted quality objcctivcs.

xv
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MANAGEME,NT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Thc BOG of thc Institutc has bccn vcry supportive to thc managemcnt and has fully pcrlorrned its oversight role in
whole and through thc llOG committecs. The managcmcnt tcam is also well constitutcd with thc Principal being
the team leadcr, two Dcputy Principals,the llegistrar, Dean of Students, IIcad of Cuidancc and Counselling and the

Industrial Liaison Officer. 'fhc Institutc has a robust team ol professional non-academic staff with a qualified
Finance Officer, an Accountant, Procurement Officer and Iiurnan I{csourcc Ofllccr arnong othcrs.

During the financial year, the managcment has endeavoured to satisfy both lcgal and rcgulatory requirement as per

the jurisdiction in its rnandatc undcr the'I-VET act2013, the Ilducation act20l3, PIrM Act 2012 and its regulations

Ouroperations were smooth though interrupted bycovid l9 pandemic duringthc financialycar.
During the period, we were able to complete most of our Pcrformance key projccts as follows: -

FY 202012021 Kcy Projccts Completion Ratc

Project
Name

Project
Description

[,ocatio
n

'l'otal

Ilstirnatcd
Cost
KSI{S

Currcnt
status

Allocation lor
t;Y 202012021
KSIIS

Ilxpcctcd
Dclivcrables
(output for IrY
20201202t)

End ol'FY
Completion
status

Constructi
on of
Tuition
block

Preparing
drawing and bill
of quantities

Mukiria
't"f I

38,000,000 new 34, 000,000 IlQs and
Drawirrgs
prcparcd

Stalled

Mentorin
g lgembe
Central
TVC

Construct Sub-
structure work
-Construct ground
floor slabs

Mcntori
ng
Igembe
Ccntral
'I'VC

59,062,877.50 new 30,000,000 -sub-
structure
constructed

-Ground
floor slabs
constructcd

-Walling ol'
ground floor
complctcd

50%
Completcd

Equipping
library

Procurc tcxtbooks Mukiria
'r"t'l

596,000 Ncw 600,000 'l'cxtbook

procurcd
100 %
Done

Renovatio
n&Equipp
irg
cosmetolo
gv
workshop

Prepare Bill of
Quantities
Procure labour

Mukiria
't"t'l

1,937 ,545 New 1,937,545 'l'illing,paintin

g,parlitioning,
labrication of
manicure and
salon tablcs.
Procurc salon
and barber
cquipmcnts.
Rool rcpairs
lor outcr
classroorn.

100% done

Renovati
on&

Preparc Uill of
Quantitics

Mukiria
't"t'l 3 18,068

400,000 100% donc
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equipping
Catering
and
Accomm
odation
Worksho
p

-Procure materials
-Procure labour on
Casual basis

Renovate
D/Principa
I

Administr
ation
office

Prepare of Bill of
Quantities
-Procure repairing
materials

Mukiria
TTI

59,000 59,000 Shelves
completed

100% done

Equip ICT
Depaftme
nt

-procure cabling
materials

Mukiria
TTI

497,460 500,000 Instalation
ofLAN

100% done

Equip
Automotiv
e

Departme
nt

-Prepare Bill of
Quantities
Procure items

760,000 new 760,000 procured 2
engines
Procured
motorvehicl
e KBY634Y

1O0%DoNE

Equip
Civil&
Engineeri
ng
Departme
nt

Prepare Billof
Quantities
Procure items

I 12,000 150,000 TD top
tables and
stands

100% done

TOTAL 101,342,950

xvll



. MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPOR'| AND FINANCIAL STATEMEN'fS
FoR THE YEAR ENDED 3o'" JUNE 2021.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

Mukiria T.T.l exists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force behind everything we do.

It's what guides us to deliver our strategy, putting the customerlCitizen first, delivering relevant goods

and services, and improving operational excellence. Below is a highlight of strategies and activities that
promote the organisation's strategic objectives.

Sustainability strategy and profile
Mukiria Technical Training Institute has cstablished several strategies to ensure sustainability of its
programs amidst many challengcs facing the managcmcnt. The Iloard has engaged collaborations with

the National Government through MoE under thc State Department of Vocational and Technical

Training for policy direction and funding on major projects. In addition; we have also enhance

collaborations with the County Government through the CDIr of Abothuguchi Sub -County for

students' sponsorships and community mobilization in developmcnt activities. Mukiria'l'TI will strive

to acquire additional land for expansion of the institute and idlnstitute .

The management has aggressively invested in the installation Management Information Software for

efficiency and effectiveness in management process and data processing. In addition, we are

refurbishing the institute website for marketing and for effective communication to all our stakeholders.

Marketing of courses both locally and nationally to attract trainees to equip them with hand on skills for

employability and self-employmcnt. 'Ihe institute's location in a low settlement area with adverse cold

climatic weather conditions has affected its growth. 'l'he management is committed to continual

improvement of the face of the institute by, paving the pathways to improve cleanliness as well

securing the facility by proper fencing.The institute in the FY has been affected by the covid 19

pandemic thus affecting the learning process but the Management has enhanced E-[,earning system

where trainers were trained on Online training hence the smooth lcarning.

Environmental performancc
The management has implemented policy on planting of trees undcr the green economy for sustainable

environment. In addition, we have improved our environment by planting flowers along designated

pathways and gardens for general aesthetics. The Institute disposcs its wastes appropriately both the

WC waste and waste waters through the sewerage system. Adequate sanitation areas with hand wash

have been provided for maintenance of hygiene. Provision of clean water for consumption and for
general cleaning through collaborations with water companies in the locality. Need for increase water

reservoirs and connectivity for treated water systems to prevent water borne diseases.

Employee welfarc

The management recruits qualified BoG staff both trainers and support staff equity bascd on the need.

The recruitment is guided by an MoE which details the terms and references of engagcment of staff.

The management observes integrity, professionalism, gender and disability inclusivity, as well as

stakeholder involvement. The Board has developed staff establishment and carcer progression policy

for Mukiria TTI BoG staff. We undertake annual staff appraisal and training Needs assessment to

establish gap for capacity building. Mukiria TTI Occupational Safety and I{ealth Act of 2007, (OSI-IA)

regulations by providing protection clothing to our staff while on duty.
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Markct placc practiccs-

'fhc Institute should outlinc its efforts to:

a) I{csponsiblecompctitionpracticc.
'l'hc institute upholds scction 6 of the constitution ol' Kcnya for all of the officers while on
duty. I'hc management has continually sensitized both staff and students on corruption
prevention matters. 'fhe service charter in English and Swahili has clearly been displayed at the
main gate and at strategic servicc points such as the customer care office, library, registrar's
office, dean's office, Guidance and counselling office, dining hall and procurement office.

b) I{csponsiblc Supply chain and supplier relations - I'hc managcment implement the Public
Procuremcnt and Disposal Act of 2012 and its Regulations of 2016 in all its procurement for
goods, services and contracts.

c) Mukiria 'l"l'l advertiscs our training programs through our websitc, the media, door to door
marketing stratcgics through thc I-ocal administration and Personal selling through good
cxamination performancc and quality serviccs and customcr focus.

d) Product stcwardship - Our customer rights and interests have been safe guarded by clear
communications to our customers through relevant offices the dean's office. We also provide
ncwsletters to convcy crucial and authentic information to our customcrs. We used authorized
communication channcls the official addresscs, mobile numbers and cmails.

Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

Mukiria 1"fl engagcs in Social Corporate Rcsponsibility activitics.

i. Ily provision of facc masks to the local administration ncarby.

ii. Sensitization on Covid l9 through posters.

iii. The Institutc also visits children's homes in our locality through the Christian movement in the
institute and supported them with food and clothing.

iv. Wc undertakc annual clcaning up of thc Karicnc Market and its environs.

v. Sensitize thc community on the Governmcnt policies in relation to access to 'fVE f courses,
Procuremcnl opportunitics among othcrs.

In this FY most of the activities were not achieved due to covid l9 pandemic.
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The Board members submit their report together with the financial statetaents for the year ended Junc 30tl'

June2O2l,which show the state of ihe Mukiria Technical Training Institute's affairs'

Principal activitics

The principal activities of the Institute are:

a. To conduct training at tertiary level in technical and vocational education and training fields'

b. To determine curri"cula appropriate for training of the various manpower category and specializ'ation

required by the labour n u.["t through careful selection of available syllabi from local or international

institutions recognized by the Ministry of Education (MoE)'

c. To foster linkages with industry and other institutions for the promotion of quality and relevant

trarntng.
d. To p-romote and inculcate Entrepreneurial skills and culture within the institute's staff and students

e. To conduct Applied Research.

f. To undertake income-generating activities through production, consultancy and tailor-made short

courses, in-service ,orr.rl"r, equipmcnt and facility hiring and hospitality services to compliment

Government grants and fees revenue.
g. Foster spiritual growth among community members both staff and students.

"MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTI{ JUNE 2021,

:.REPORTOFTHECOUNCIL/I}OARDOFGOVERNORS

llesults

The performance of the Ipstitute for the year ended 30tl'June 2OZl is set out on pagc l-34

I}OARD OF GOVERNOITS
)

The members of the Board who scrved during the year are shown on page v & vii- During the year the

Chairperson- Everlyr-re Mutave rcsigned and Chairpcrson -Mr Albcrt Kobia Wakamau was appointed

with effect from 1910712021

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Mukiria 'f .T.l in accordance with Articlc

229 of tl-rc Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order of the Board

Albert Kobia Wakamau

Chairperson of the Board

Date: 28/0912021

xx



rVTU^II(IA T TTUHNICAL TITAINING INSTITUTE
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XI. STATEMENT OF I}OAIID OT- GOVEIINOITS IIESPONSII}ILITIES.

Section 8l of the I'}ublic Irinance Managcment Act, 2012 andsection 29 ofschedule 2 of the Technicaland vocational Education and Training Act, require the I]^oard members to prepare financiar statements inrespect of that Institute, which give a truc and lair view of the state of uraii, of the Institute, at the end ofthe financial year/period and ihe operating results of the Institute, ro.-irut yearlperiod. The councilmembers are also required to ensure.that tf,e Institute; kccps p.of.. u..ountirg records which disclose
Hl.l"t},:-dil:::?J:;.[:T:lirf't.i;;il;;lnstrtute. 'r he Board ,,.-b"., arc arso responsibre

The Board members are responsible.for the preparation and presentation of the Institute s fina,cialstatements' which give a true and fair vicw of the ,tut" oiurruirs oithe In.titrt", for and as at the end of thefinancial year (period) ended on June 30;2021. Tlrir;".;onsibility includes:(i) Maintaini.g adequate financial -unug"-"ni'u..ung"*cnts and ensuring that trresc continue tobc effective throughour the rcporting icriod;(ii) Maintai,ing ptoptt accounting ,""Jrdr, *r,i.t, disclose with rcasonablc accuracy at any rimethc financial position of thc Inititute;(iii) Designing' irnpleme,ting a.d.rnaintaining inter,al controls relevant to the prcparation and fairpresentation of the financial stateme.tl, and ensuring ,rrui ,h"y ur" free from materialmisstatements, whethcr due to error or fraud.
!iy) Sateguarding the assets of the Institute.(v) Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and(vi) Making accounting 

"tii.ut., that are ,.uronu'bl. in the circumstances.
'I'he Board members accept responsibility fbr the Institute s financial stalements, which have been preparcdusing appropriate ucto"ii'g policies supported by rcasonab]. 

T9_lydent judgemenrs and estimates, inconformity with International i"bli" s":lgr Accounring Standards (rpsnsl, i'rd in the manner required bythe PFM Act' 2012 a,d the ]'vllr Act. l'he lloard .r"iu.., are of the opinion that the Institute ,s financialstatements give a truc and fair vicw of thc state of I;riiil. i' transaction. au.ing the financial year endcdJune 30' 2021' and of the I,stitute s financiat positionas ut tt-,ut date. J'hc nou.a membcrs further confinnthe completeness of the accounting rccords maintained for the Institute, *ir[t., t ru" been rcliecl upo, in thepreparation of the Institute 
"r 

financial stalemcnts as well as thc adequacy of the systcms of internar fina,ciarcontrol.

Nothing has come to the attcntion of thc Iloard members to indicate that the Institutc, will not remain agoing concem for at least the ncxt twelve months lrom the datc of this statement.

Approval of thc financial statcmcnts

)ff*#;:::':iiT;:'f"1ff;i"ute nnancial statements werc approved by the Board on 28th september

Signature
Albert Kobia Wakamau

I
1\

-.\ l
r.. '[.-

Caroline K Muguna

1P.-,L).:;
Chairpcrson ol thc Board
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Telephone: +254-(zo) 3214ooo
E-mail: info@oagkenya.go.ke
Website: www.oagkenya.go.ke

REPUBLIC OF KBNYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

En ha nc i ng Acc ounta bi I ity

HEADqUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box 3oo84-ooloo
NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING
INSTITUTE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2021

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report, which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financia!
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mukiria Technical Training
lnstitute set out on pages 1 to 32, which comprise of the statement of financial position
as at 30 June, 2021, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes
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in net assets, statement of cash flows and the statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Mukiria Technical Training lnstitute as at 30 June, 2021,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with
the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Technical and Vocational Education
and Training Act, 2013.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Unsupported Expenditure on Use of Goods and Services

The statement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs.28,739,402 under use
of goods and services and as disclosed under Note 1 1(a) to the financial statements. The
amount includes tuition fees of Kshs.10,297,903 out of which Kshs.476,600 was paid to
staff trainers and others within the school as allowances, including subsistence
allowances. However, the criteria used to pay the subsistence allowance to the staff
members who were at their duty stations was not provided for review. lt was therefore not
clear how the rates used to pay were determined by Management. Further, training
schedules, attendance lists, evidence of training venue, letters of appointment to the
respective committees for the members, the duration of the appointment of the
committees and clarity on the end user of the committees reports were not provided.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of the Kshs.476,600 expenditure could not be
confirmed.

2. Unsupported Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects Kshs.70,333,110 in respect to receivables
from exchange transactions. As further disclosed under Note 18 to the financial
statements, the balance relates to student debtors and includes Kshs.45,503,871 that
has been outstanding since the financial year 201912020. However, the debtors ageing
analysis schedule was not provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and recoverability of the receivables from exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.45,503,871 could not be confirmed.

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

3.1 Land Without Ownership Documents and Valuation Reports

The statement of financial position reflects an amount of Kshs.51,050,741 under property,
plant and equipment which as disclosed under Note 21 to the financial statements reflects
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nil balance for land and buildings. As previously reported, the land and buildings balance
excludes two parcels of land measuring 2.75 and 2.6 acres. Further, the ownership
documents and valuation reports of the two parcels were not provided for audit review.

ln addition, the land and buildings balance also excludes two (2) parcels of land
measuring 70 ft by 70 ft and 84 ft by 124 ft leased for a period of ten (10) years from two
different parties whose details of ownership and valuation reports were not provided for
audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness, valuation and ownership of the
institute's land and buildings could not be ascertained.

3.2 Motor Vehicle with Private Number Plate

Further the property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.51 ,050,741 excludes motor
vehicles with an original cost of Kshs.7,140,000 that are fully depreciated and have not
been revalued despite being of economic value. ln addition, and as previously reported,
the fully depreciated motor vehicles include a vehicle, which bears a private registration
number instead of the blue colour state corporation reflective sheet as required. No
justification or explanation was provided for the anomaly. This is contrary to Section 12

of the Traffic (Registration Plates) Rules, 2016 which states that the registration plate for
a State Corporation vehicle shall bear the required number of optical recognizable
characters depending on the type of motor vehicle embossed and printed in white on blue
aluminum reflective sheet.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness, and ownership of the motor vehicles
with a cost of Kshs.7,140,000 could not be confirmed.

3.3 Unsupported Work-ln-Progress

The property, plant and equipment figure of Kshs.51 ,050,741 also includes
Kshs.29,066,100 relating to Work-ln-Progress. As previously reported, the supporting
documents including bills of quantities, quotations, opening and evaluation committee
minutes, professional opinion, letters of offer and acceptance, contract agreements and
minutes/reports of site meetings were not provided for audit review. This is contrary to
Section 9(1)(e)(i) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 which gives the Auditor-General
unrestricted access to all books, records, returns, reports, electronic or other wise and
other documents of entities listed under Article 229(4) of the constitution.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and valuation of the balance of
Work-ln-Progress of Kshs.29,066,100 could not be confirmed.

4. Understatement of Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance

The statement of financial position and as disclosed under Note 17 to the financial
statements reflects cash and cash equivalents balance of Kshs.59,640,217 which
includes Kshs.12,497,325 held at local bank and Kshs.39,488,984 at another local bank
account. However, the respective cashbooks had not been updated with two receipts in
the bank statement and not in cashbook of Kshs.376,506 and Kshs.57,722 respectively
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totalling to Kshs.434,228 reflected in the bank reconciliation statements, thereby
understating the cash book balance.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of the cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.59,640,217 could not be confirmed.

5. Unsupported Payments to Casual Workers

The statement of financial performance reflects an expenditure of Kshs.3,247,685 in
respect to repairs and maintenance which includes Kshs.317,800 paid to casual workers.
However, there was no master roll provided to confirm that the paid beneficiaries actually
did the work. Further, minutes authorizing engagement of casual laborers were also not
provided for audit review.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the Kshs.317,800 expenditure
on casual workers could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Mukiria Technical Training lnstitute
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. ! believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my Qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

1. Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actualon a comparable basis of Kshs.152,898,000 and Kshs.86,085,971 respectively
resulting to an under-funding of Kshs.66,812,029 or 44o/o of the budget. Similarly, the
lnstitute expended Kshs.49,220,022 against an approved budget of Kshs.152,898,000
resulting to an under-expenditure of Kshs.103,677,978 or 68% of the budget.

The underfunding and under-performance affected the planned activities and may have
impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

ln addition, the lnstitute did not present its budget to the parent Ministry for approval by
the Cabinet Secretary in-charge of Education contrary to Regulation 218(1) of the Public
Finance Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 which states that the
Cabinet Secretary responsible for the State Corporation shall approve the estimates of
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budget for the state corporation and shall not later than January every year, submit to The
National Treasury for approval those estimates for the following financial year.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Gonclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lav'rfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Non-Compliance with Law on Ethnic Composition

Review of the lnstitute's human resource records including the payroll revealed that the
lnstitute had 50 employees. However, analysis of the payroll indicated that 36 employees
or72o/o were from the same ethnic community contrary to Section 7(2) of the National
Cohesion and lntegration Act, 2008 which states that no public establishment shall have
more than one third of its staff from the same ethnic community.

Management was, therefore, in breach of the law.

2. lrregular Recruitment and Engagement of Trainers

The statement of financial performance and Note 12 to the financial statements reflects
Kshs.6,723,456 in respect to employee costs. Review of payment vouchers and other
supporting documents revealed that during the year under review, the lnstitute recruited
12 trainers, however no advertisement was done for the various posts recruited and no
documentary evidence was provided on how the recruitment process and appointment
was done by the Governing Council. ln addition, the contracts signed were open on the
contract period of engagement of the trainers.

!n the circumstances, the regularity of the recruitment process could not be confirmed.

3. lrregular Repairs and Maintenance

The statement of financial performance reflects an expenditure of Kshs.3,247,685 in
respect to repairs and maintenance which includes Kshs.337,970 paid to a Company for
the supply of building materials but whose supporting documents including quotations
and opening and evaluation committee minutes were not provided for audit review.
Further, the procurement documents provided by the three companies were not signed
or stamped by the suppliers hence doubtful on their authenticity. ln addition, the suppliers
were not in the lnstitute's list of prequalified suppliers for the category for which they were
invited to quote.
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ln the circumstances, the value for money for the expenditure of Kshs .337,970 could not
be confirmed.

4. lrregularities in Purchase and Supply of Building Materials

The statement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs.3,247,685 under
repairs and maintenance, which as disclosed under Note 15 to the financial statements
includes Kshs.651,619 for the supply of construction materials procured through direct
procurement. This is contrary to Section 103(2)(a) of the Public Procurement and Asset
Disposal Act, 2015 which states that a procuring entity may use direct procurement if any
of the following are satisfied; the goods, works or services are available only from a
particular supplier or contractor, or a particular supplier or contractor has exclusive rights
in respect of the goods, works or services, and no reasonable alternative or substitute
exists. Further, the suppliers' engaged were not registered for taxation purposes. ln
addition, the bill of quantities or plan for the classrooms that were being constructed was
not provided for audit review.

ln the circumstances, value for money on Kshs.651,619 could not be confirmed. ln
addition, Management was in breach of the law.

5. lrregular Expenditure on Motor Vehicle lnsurance Cover

The statement of receipts and payments reflects an amount of Kshs.28,739,402 under
use of goods and services as disclosed under Note 1 1(a) to the financial statements. The
amount includes Kshs.2,173,593 for local travel and transport out of which Kshs.100,000
was paid for provision of comprehensive insurance cover for a motor vehicle. However,
it was noted that the expenditure was not supported by the quotations and tender opening
committee minutes, contrary to Regulation 104(1) of the Public Finance Management
(National Government) Regulations, 2015 which states that all receipts and payment
vouchers of public monies shall be supported by pre-numbered receipts, payment
vouchers, appropriate authority and documentation. Further, there was no evidence of
formal appointment of the evaluation committee and the evaluation minutes were signed
by only one committee member who was the Secretary.

ln the circumstances, the Management was in breach of the law.

6. Lack of a Scheme of Service

Review of the payroll provided by the lnstitute indicated that 50 employees were
engaged on contract terms during the year under review. However, the lnstitute did not
provide an approved scheme of service to determine the staffing levels. As a result, the
adequacy and appropriateness, job description, requirement, the existence and the
necessity to fill vacancies or the possibility of staff progression could not be ascertained.
This is contrary to Section 2.3 of the Public Service Commission - Guide for Career
Management in the Civil Service of April, 2018 which states that a Scheme of Service is
a Human Resource lt/lanagement tool that is designed to provide career management
for particular cadres of staff.
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ln the circumstances, the lnstitute was in breach of the law.

7. Lack of Public Finance Management Standing Committee

During the year under review the lnstitute did not have a Public Finance Management
Committee (Standing Committee) in place as required by Regulation 18(1) of the Public
Finance Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 which states that every
National Government entity shall have a Committee to be known as the Public Finance
Management Standing Committee to provide strategic guidance to the entity on Public
Finance Management matters.

ln the circumstances, the Management was in breach of the law.

8. Delay in Supply and lmplementation of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
System

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed under Note 1 1(a) to the financial
statements reflects an amount of Kshs.2l,739,402 relating to use of goods and services
which includes Kshs.660,000 relating to automation, paid to a Company for supply,
installation, testing and training on an ERP system in March,2020 at a contract sum of
Kshs.1,650,000 and contract term ending on 30 April, 2020 or any other period as may
have been subsequently agreed by the parties in writing. However, as at the time of audit
the financial reporting modules of the ERP system had not been delivered yet full payment
for the module had been made. ln addition, the project had not been completed resulting
to the delay in delivery of services to the lnstitute.

Further, there was no project implementation team appointed by the Accounting Officer
as required by Section 151(1) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act,2015
which states, for every complex and specialized procurement contract, the Accounting
Officer of a procuring entity shall appoint a contract implementation team.

ln the circumstances, value for money on expenditure of Kshs.660,000 could not be
confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements, plan, and perform the audit to obtain assurance about
whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern
them. I believe that the audit evidence ! have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK TVIANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on

Report of the Auditor-General on Mukiria Technical Training Inslitute for the year ended 30 June, 202 I
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Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Lack of an Internal Audit Function

The lnstitute has not established an internal audit function. This is contrary to Section 155
of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 which provides for the establishment of the
internal audit function, as a result, there was no audit report produced nor audit exercise
conducted for presentation to the oversight body for purposes of reviewing and improving
its operations.

ln the circumstances, the lnstitute did not benefit from the value of the internal audit
function and its reports for management effectiveness and improvement.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSA! 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overallgovernance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. ! believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
lnstitute's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the lnstitute or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the lnstitute financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors

Report ofthe Audilor-Generol on Mukiria Technical Training Instilutefor the year ended 30 June, 202 I
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compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective
processes and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation
to governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of
the control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
lnstitute's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

Report of the Auditor-Generol on Mukiria Technical Training lnstitute for the year ended 30 June, 202 I
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those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the lnstitute's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the lnstitute to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the lnstitute to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

08 September,2022

Report of the Auditor-General on Mukiria Technical Training Institute for the year ended 30 June, 202 I
10



MUKIIUA TECIINICAL TITAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FoR THE YEAI{ ENDED 30" JLrNE 202r.

XIII. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL I'ERFORMANCE FOIT THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Notcs 2020t202t 2019t2020

The notes set out on pages 6 to 34 form an integral part of the Annual Financial Statements.

Kshs Kshs

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer from the national govemrnents grants/gift
in kind 6a 59,827,500 23,898, I 00

Transfer from other governments entities-CDF 7

Total Revenue from non-exchange transactions 59,827,500 23,898,100

Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering ofservices- Fees from students 8 26,122,396 36,563,465

Other income 9 124,075 455,392

Rental income IO 12,000 21,000

Reven ue from exchange transactions 26,258,471 37,039,857

Total revenue 86,085,971 60,937,957

Expenses

Use ofgoods and services I l(a) 28,739,402 20,848,891

Provision for audits fee l l(b) 660,267 660,267

Employee costs t2 6,723,456 10,513,669

Remuneration of directors l3 l,l 17,000 869,000

Depreciation and amortization expense t4 8,894,479 8,s83,271

Repairs and maintenance l5 3,247,685 2,856,614

Contracted services l6 498,000 433,200

Transfer to Igembe technical training institute 25 0 10,000,000

Total expenses 49,880,289 54,764,912

Net Surplus for the year 36,205,692 6,173,045
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL S'I'ATEMENTS
FoR THE YEAR ENDED 3orH JUNE 202r.

xIV. STATEMENT oF FINANCIAL posITIoN AS AT 30'*tJUNE,202r

The Financial Statements set out on pages I to 34 were signed on behalf of the Institute Council/ Board of Governors by:

Name: Albert Kobia Wakamau Roseline Kanyiri Caroline K Muguna

Ll, 9,,,!=).:,:
Sign

IA\. i_

Sign

Chairman of Council/Board of Governors

Date.28/0912021

Finance Officer
ICPAK No 26894
Date:28/0912021

Principal

Date:28109/2021

2

Notes 2020t2021 2019t2020

Kshs Kshs

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents l7 59,640,217 19,300,079

Receivables from exchange transactions l8 70,333, r r 0 45,503,871

Total Current Assets 129,973,327 64,803,950

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 2t 5l,050,741 4l,371,867

Long term receivables from exchange transactions

Total Non-current Assets 5l,050,741 41,371,867

Total assets l8l,024,068 106,175,817

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 22(a) 38,513,497 20,53 I,195

Audits fees 22(b) 1,980,80 I 1,320,534

Refundable deposits from customers 23 442,000 442,000

Total Current Liabilities 40,936,298 22,293,729

Total liabilities 40,936,298 22,293,729

Capital and Reserves

Reserves 75,558,921 28,323,167

Accumulated surplus 64,528,849 55,558,921

Total Liabilitics and Capital & Reserves 140,087,770 83,882,088

181,024,068 106,175,817
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FoR THE YEAR ENDED 3o'n'JUNE 202r.

XV. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

2020t2021 2019t2020

Note Kghs Kshs

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Transfers from other Government entities/Govt. grants 6(a) 59,827,500 23,898, r 00

Transfer from other governments entrties-CDF

Rendering of services 8 26,122,396 36,563,465

Other income I 't24,075 455.392

Rental income 10 12,000 2 t ,000

Total Receipts 86,085,971 60,937,957

Payments

Use of goods and services 11(a) 28,739,402 20,848,89r

Audits fees 11(b) 660,267 660,267

Compensation of employees 12 6,723,456 t0,513,66e

Board of governers allowances 13 1 ,1 1 7,000 869.000

Depreciation and amortization expense 14 8,894,479 8,s83.27 r

Repair maintainances and development 15 3,247,685 2,8s6,6t4

Contracted services 16 498,000 433,200

Transfer to Igembe technical training institute 25 0 I 0,000,000

Total Payments 49,880,289 sl,764,9t2

Net Surplus 36,205,682 6, I 73,045

Depreciation 8,894,479 8,583,27t
Less; (Increase)/Decrease in Receivable from Exchange trans. -24,988,L4t -20,242,966

Less; Increase/(decrease) in Trade and other Dayables t8,t4L,204 3,713,895
Less; Increase/(decrease) in Provision for audit fees 660,267 660,267

Less; (Increase)/Decrease in Refundable Deposit 0

Less; (Decrease)/Increase in other payables

Net cash flow from operatinq activities 38,913,492 -L,LLz,48f,

cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Droperty, Dlant, equipment and intanqible assets -t8,573,354 -7,L99,255

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and Equipment

Net cash flows used in investing activities -18,573,354 -7,L99,255
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowinqs
Government DeveloDment Grants 20,ooo,ooo 4.O75.600
Net cash flows used in financing activities 20,ooo,oo0 4,O75,600

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 40,340,138 -4,236,L43

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 2020 19,3OO,O79 23,536,222

Cash and cash equivalents as at 3O June 2O21 59,640,2L7 19,300,079
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MUKIRIA TECTINICAL TITAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL ITEPOR'I' nND FINANCIAT, STATITMITNTS
TTOR TI II] YI]AIi. IlNDIlD 3O.T'I JI.JNI] 202I .

XvI. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR
THE, YEAIT ENDED 30 JUNE,2O2I

Original
budget Adjustments Final budget

Actual on
comparable

basis

Performance
dlfference

2(J20-2021 2020-2021 20ztJ-2()2L 2(J20-2(J2L 2()2(J-2lJ21

Revenue
Transfers from other
Govt entities 85,000,000 85,000,000 59,827,500 25,772,5OO

Rendering of
services- Fees from
studesnts

67,313,000 67,313,000 26,122,396 4t,L90,604

Other income 585,000 585,000 124,O75 460,925
Rental revenue/hire
of facilitv 0 0 12,000 -12,000

Total income 152,898,OOO o 152,8g8rOOO 86,O85,971 66r8t2,O29

Expenses

Use of goods and
services 68,529,277

19,619,259

68,529,277 28,739,402 39,789,875

Compensation of
emolovees 79,619,259 6,723,456 12,895,903

Board allowances 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,1 17,000 383,000

RMI 4,265,800 4,265,9O0 3,247,695 1,0 18, 1 15

Provision for audits
fee 660,267 660,267 0 660,267

Depreciation and
amortization
exoenses

0 0 8,894,479 -8,894,479

Contracted services 720,000 720,000 498.000 222,OOO
Capital/development
exoenditure 57,603,397 57,603,397 57,603,397

Total exDenditure 152,898,0OO o 152,898,OOO 49.220.022 LO3,677,97A
Surplus/deficits
for the oeriod o o o 361865r949 -36,865,949

Budget notes
l. Due !o disruption during thefinoncial year caused by the Covid l9 pandemic, activities did not actualise

as budgeted hence resulling to per/ormance differences.
2. T-he difference on surplus belv,een the stalement ofperformance and budgel comparison is because the

provisionfor audit lees is not aclually paid where budgel is prepared on cash basis not accrual basis.
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FoR THE YEAR ENDED 3o't'JUNE 202r.

XVII. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I GENERAL INFORMATION
Mukiria TTI is established by and derives its authority and accountability from TVET Act,
2013. The Institute is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in
Kenya. The Institute's principal activity is to teach and train in Technical and Vocational
Education & Training; Research and Innovation and Community Service.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE, AND BASIS OF I'REPARATION

The financial statemcnts have been prcpared on a historical cost basis exccpt f,or the
measurement at re-valucd amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment,
marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired asscts at their
estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also
requires management to exercise judgcment in the proccss of applying the institute's
accounting policies. 'fhc areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed
in Notes.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Sh illings, which is
the functional and reporting currency of Mukiria'f.'l'.1.

The financial statcmcnts have been prcpared in accordance with the PFM Act 2012, the
State Corporations Act 2012, the TVET Act 2013, and International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS). 'fhe accounting policics adoptcd have bcen consistently
applied to all the years presented.
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TITAINING INSTITUTE,
ANNUAI, REPORT AND FINANCIAL S'|A'|EMENTS
IroR lr IIi ynn R I.INI)ut) 30,' J tJNn 2021 .

3. ADOI'TION OF NE,W AND ITEVISED STANDARDS

i. Ilelcvant new standards and amcndments to published standards effective for the
ycar ended 30th June 2021.

Other
Improvements
to IPSAS

a) Amendments to IPSAS 13, to include the appropriate
references to IPSAS on impairment, in place of the current
rcfercnces 1o other intcrnational and/or national accounting
framcworks.

b) IPSAS 13, Lcases and IPSAS 17, Propcrty, Plant, and
Iiquipmcnt.
Amcndments to removc transitional provisions which should
have bcen deleted whcn IPSAS 33, First Time Adoption of
Accrual []asis International Public Scctor Accounting
Standards (lPSASs) was approved.

c) IPSAS 21, lmpairmcnt of Non-Cash-Generating Assets and
IPSAS 26,lmpairment of Cash Generating nssets.
Amendments to ensure consistcncy of impairment guidance to
account for revalued asscts in the scope of IPSAS 17,
Propcrly, Plant, and llquipment and IPSAS 31, Intangible
Asscts.

d) IPSAS 33, Irirst-time Adoption of Accrual Basis International
Public Sector Accounting Standards (lPSASs).
Amendmenls to the implementation guidance on deemed cost
in II'}SAS 33 to make it consistcnt with the core principles in
the Standard.

Applicable: I't January 2021:

7



MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FoR THE YEAR ENDED 3o'n:uNp zo2t.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ii. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet cffective in
the ycar ended 30 June 2021.

Early adoption of standards

The Institute did not carly - adopt any new or amendcd standards in ycar 2021.

8

IPSAS 4I:
Financial
Instruments

Applicable: I't January 2023:
The objective of IPSAS 4l is to cstablish principles for the financial
reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and

useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment of
the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Institute's futurc cash flows.
IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful
information than IPSAS 29,by:

.Applying a single classification and measurement model for financial
assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's cash flows and the
objective for which the asset is held;

.Applying a single forward-looking expccted credit loss model that is

applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing; and

.Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadcns the
hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a

strong link between an Institute's risk management stratcgies and the
accounting treatmcnt for instruments held as part of the risk management
strategy.

IPSAS 42:
Social Benefits

Applicablc: I't January 2023
The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful
reprcscntativeness and comparability of the inlormation that a reporting
Institute provides in its financial statemcnts about social bcnefits. Thc
information provided should help users of the financial statements and

general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Institute;
(b) The key features of the opcration of those social benefit schemes; and
(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Institute's
financial pcrformance, financial position and cash flows.

Amendments
to Other IPSAS
resulting from
IPSAS 4I,
Financial
Instruments

Applicable: lst January 2023:
a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted
when IPSAS 4l was issucd.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examplcs on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertcntly omitted when
IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for
financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitled when
IPSAS 4l was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying
financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS
which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

ur



MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND ITINANCIAL STA'|EMENTS
FoR TI'IE yEAR ENDED :orH.luNE 202t.

4. SUMMAITY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING I'OLICIES

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

'I'ransfcrs from other govcrnmcnt cntitics

I{cvenucs from non-exchange transactions with other government entitics arc
measured at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash,
goods, scrvices and property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it is
probable thal the cconomic benefits or service potential related to the asset will
flow to the Institutc and can be measured reliably. Recurrcnt grants are recognized
in the statemcnt of comprehensive income. Development/capital grants are
rccognized in the statement of financial position and realised in the statement of
comprehensive income over the useful life of the assets that has been acquired
using such funds

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Ilcndcring of scrvices

'l'he Institute recognizes revenuc from rendering of scrvices by reference to the
stage of completion when thc oulcomc of thc transaction can be estimated reliably.
'l'he stagc of complction is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date
as a perccntage of total estimated labour hours.

Wherc thc contract outcomc cannot be mcasured rcliably, revenue is recognized
only to thc extent that the cxpenscs incurred are recoverable.

Sale of goods

Rcvenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and
rcwards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of
thc goods and when thc amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is
probable that the economic bcnefits or scrvice potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the Institute.

Intercst incomc

Interest incomc is accrucd using thc cffective yield method. 'l'he effective yield
discounts estimated futurc cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
assct to that asset's net carrying amount. l'he method applies this yield to the
principal outstanding to detcrmine intercst income each period.

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's or
thc Institute's right to receive payments is established.

9
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TIIAINING INSTITUTE,
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FoR THE YEAR ENDED 30" JUNE 202r.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a) Revenue recognition (Continued)

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

b) Budget information

The original budget for FY 2020/2021 was approved by the Board on ll'h August 2021

Subsequent rcvisions or additional appropriations wcre made to the approved budget in
accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional
appropriations are added to the original budget by the Institute upon receiving the
respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the Institute
did not record additional appropriations on the FY 202012021 budget.

The Institute's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and

expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. l-he financial statements are prepared
on accrual basis using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement
of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts
in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and
reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A
comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the
approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements
are also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the
presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the
statement of financial performance has been presented under section 10 of these

financial statements.

c) Taxes

Current income tax
The Institute is exempt from paying taxes as per schedule

l0
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TITAINING INSTITUTI]
ANNUAI. REPOI{]' AND ITINANCIAT, S'|A'|IJMENI'S
IroR Tur yEAI{ IINDTD 30't" JIJNE 2021.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIBS (Continued)

c) Taxes (continued)

Sales tax/ Value Added Tax

I:xpcnscs and asscts are rccognizcd nct of thc amount of sales tax, exccpt:

from thc taxation authority, in which casc, the sales tax is recognized as part of the

cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

'l'hc nct amount ol sales tax rccoverablc from, or payablc to, thc taxation authority is
includcd as part of rcceivables or payables in thc statcment of financial position.

d) Investment propcrty

Investmcnt propertics arc measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. l'he
carrying amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment
property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes
the costs of day-to-day maintenance of an investment propcrty.

Invcstmcnt property acquired through a non-exchangc transaction is measured at its fair
value at thc date of acquisition. Subscqucnt to initial recognition, investment propcrties
are measured using the cost modcl and arc dcpreciatcd ovcr a pcriod ol-,10 ycars.

lnveslmcnt propcrtics arc derccognizcd either whcn they havc becn disposed of or
when the invcstmcnt property is permanently withdrawn from usc and no future
economic bcncfit or service potential is expccted from its disposal. '[he difference
bctwccn thc nct disposal procccds and the carrying amount of thc assct is recognized in
the surplus or dcficit in thc pcriod of dc-rccognition.

'l'ransfers arc madc to or from invcstment propcrty only when there is a change in use

e) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipmcnt are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairmcnt losses. Cost includcs expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the itcms. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
rcquired to be replaced at intervals, the Institute recognizes such parts as individual
assets with spccific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a
major inspection is pcrformed, its cost is recognized in thc carrying amount of the plant
and equipment as a rcplacement if the rccognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset

is acquircd in a non-cxchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is
initially measurcd at its fair valuc.
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FoR THE YEAR ENDED 3otn JUNE zoz t.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f) Lcases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially thc entire risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Institute. Assets held under a finance
lease are capitalized at the commenccment of thc lease at the fair value ol'the leased

property or, if lower, at the present valuc of the future minimum lcase payments. The
Institute also recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The
liability recognized is measured as the present value ol'the future minimum lease
payments at initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, leasc payments are apportioncd betwcen finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges arc recognized as finance costs
in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Institute will obtain ownership of
the asset by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated ovcr the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and thc lease term.
Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the lcased item to the Institute. Operating lease payments are

recognized as an operating expense in surplus or dcficit on a straight-line basis over the
leasc term.

g) Intangible asscts

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost.'l'hc cost of
intangible asscts acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of
the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amorlization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangible asscts, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and

expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is

incurred. The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite

h) Research and development costs

The Institute expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual
project are recognized as intangible assets when thc Institutc can demonstrate:

available for use or sale

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset bcgins when
development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period
of expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for
impairment annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or
deficit.

12
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MUKIIUA TECHNICAL TIIAINING INSTITUTB
ANNUAL ItIiPOII'l' nND ITINANCIAL S'fA]-t1MENTS
FOR'I-I-IE YEAR I]NDED 3O'tH:UNP 202I.

NOTES TO TI{E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i) Financial instrumcnts

Finuncial assels

Initiol recognition und measurement

Irinancial assets within thc scope of II'SAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measuremcnt are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or
dcficit, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity invcstments or available-for-sale
financial assets, as appropriate. The Institute determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivahles

Loans and rcceivablcs are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
dcterminable paymcnts that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measuremcnt, such financial assets are subscquently measured at amortized cost
using thc effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an intcgral part o[ thc cffectivc interest rate. Losses arising from
irnpairmcnt arc rccognized in thc surplus or dcficit.

IIeld-to-muturity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturitics are classified as held to maturity when the Institute has the positive
intention and ability to hold it to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-
maturity investments arc measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, lcss impairment. Amorlized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
cffectivc interest ratc.'I'hc losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus
or deficit.

I mpairme nt of Ji na nc i al us sels

'l'he Institute asscsscs at each reporting date whether thcre is objective evidence that
a financial asset or an Institute of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
Institutc of financial assets is decmed to be impaired il and only if,, there is

objectivc evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has

occurred aftcr thc initial recognition of the assct (an incurred'loss event') and that
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the Institute of financial assets that can bc reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include the following indicators:
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STA'|I]MENTS
FoR THE YEAR ENDED 30" luNn zozt.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i) Financial instrumcnts (Continued)

Fi nanc ia I assets (Co nt i n ue d)

Impairment ofJinancial assets (Continued)

difficulty

reorganization

(e.g. changes in arrears or economic conditions that corrclate with dclaults)

Financiol liabilities

Initial recognilion and measuremenl

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as

appropriate. The Institute determines the classification of its financial liabilities at

initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowing

After initial recognition, interest bcaring loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are

recognized in surplus or deficit when the liabilities are derecognized as well as

through thc effective interest method amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part ofthe effcctive interest rate.

i) Invcntories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was
received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost
of the inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurrcd in bringing each product to its prcsent location and conditions are

accounted for, as follows:

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on thc normal operating capacity, but

exclud ing borrowing costs

14



MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAt, TTEPORT NND FINANCIAL STNTI]MEN'|S
FoR r-r IE yrAlt IINDIID 30'" JTJNE 2021.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i) Inventories(Continucd)

Altcr initial rccognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. I-lowevcr, to thc extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no
charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost
and current rcplacement cost.

Nct realizable value is thc cstimatcd sclling price in the ordinary coursc of operations,
lcss the estimatcd costs ol completion and the cstimated costs necessary to make the
salc, exchangc, or distribution

Inventories arc rccognizcd as an cxpense when dcployed for utilization or consumption
in the ordinary coursc of opcrations of the Institute.

j) Provisions

Provisions arc recognizcd when the Institute has a prescnt obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past cvcnt, it is probable that an outflow of resources
cmbodying economic bcncfits or scrvice potential will bc requircd to settle thc
obligation and a rcliablc cstimate can bc made of the amount of the obligation.

Wherc the Institulc cxpccts some or all of a provision to bc reimbursed, for example,
undcr an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognizcd as a separate asset only
whcn the reimbursement is virtually ccrtain.

'l'hc cxpcnsc rclating to any provision is prcscnted in the statement of financial
pcrlormancc nct of any rcimburscmcnt.

Co nt i nge nt I ia bil it ies

l'hc Institute does not rccognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any
contingencics in the notes to the financial statemcnts, unless the possibility of an
outflow of rcsources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingenl assets

'l'he Institutc docs not recognize a contingent assct, but discloses details of a possible
assct whosc cxistcnce is contingcnt on the occurrcnce or non-occurrcnce of one or
more uncertain fulure cvcnts not wholly within the control of the Institute in the notes
to thc financial statements. Contingcnt assets are assessed continually to ensure that
dcvclopments arc appropriately reflected in the financial statcments. If it has become
virtually ccrtain that an inflow of economic benefits or servicc potential will arise and
the asset's valuc can bc measured rcliably, thc asset and the related revenue are
rccognized in thc financial statemcnts of the period in which the change occurs.
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENI'S
FoR THE YEAR ENDED 30" JUNE 2ozt.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATBMBNTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k) Nature and purpose ofreservcs

The Institute creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements.

l) Changes in accounting policies and estimatcs

The Institute recognizes thc cffects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively.
The effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective
application is impractical.

m) Employce benefits

Retirement benefi t plans

The Institute does not provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors.
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an Institute
pays fixed contributions into a separate Institute (a fund), and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employce benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits
are charged against income in the year in which they become payable.

Defined bcncfit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-
contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the
projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified arc rccovercd through lump sum
payments or increased future contributions on proportional basis to all participating
employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment
benefit obligation.

n) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies arc initially accounted for at the ruling rate of
exchange on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in
foreign currency are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by
applying the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences arising from the

settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at

which they wcre initially rccordcd during the period, are recognized as income or
expenses in the period in which thcy arise.

o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and

equipment.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the assct is being
acquired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when

construction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the

statement of fi nancial performance.
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ANNIJAI, IIEPORT NND ITINANCIAL SI'ATEMENTS
IroR'r'rir yEAI{ ENDED 30rrrJUNE 2021.

NOTES TO TIIE, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

p) Itelatcd partics

"l'he Institute regards a related party as a person or an Institute with the ability to exert
control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influcnce over the Institute, or
vice versa. Membcrs of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise
the directors, the CIIO/principal and senior managers.

q) Scrvicc concession arrangements

'l'he Institutc analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into
in detcrmining thc appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In
particular, where a private party contributes an asset to thc arrangement, the Institute
recognizes that assct when, and only when, it controls or rcgulates the services. The
operator must provide logether with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at
what price. In thc case of assets other than 'whole-of-life' assets, it controls, through
ownership, bcneficial cntitlcment or othcrwisc - any significanl rcsidual interest in the
asset at the cnd ol-thc arrangemcnt. Any assets so recognized arc measured at their fair
valuc. 'l'o thc extcnt that an assct has been recognized, the Institute also recognizcs a
corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

r) Cash and cash equivalcnts

Cash and cash equivalcnts comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits
on call and highly liquid investmcnts with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are rcadily convcrtible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant
risk ol'changcs in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central
llank of Kenya and at various commcrcial banks at thc end of the financial year. For
thc purposes ol'thcsc financial statcmenls, cash and cash equivalents also include short
tcrm cash imprests and advances to authoriscd public officers and/or institutions which
wcre not surrcndcred or accounted for at the end of the financial year.

s) Comparativc figurcs

Where neccssary comparative figurcs for thc previous financial year have been
amcnded or rcconfigured to conform to the rcquired changes in prcsentation.

t) Subscquent events

'l'here have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant
impact on the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 .
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FoR THE YEAR ENDED 30" JUNS zozt.

SIGNIFICANT
[II\CERTAINTY

JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

Thc preparation of the Institute's financial statements in conlormity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, unccrtainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a matcrial adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sourccs of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below. The Institute based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
consolidated financial statements were prepared. I{owever, existing circumstances and

assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Institutc. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur. IPSAS I .140

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual valucs of assets are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future use and value from disposal:

Institute

processes

Provisions

Provisions wcre raised and management determined an estimatc bascd on thc information
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note xxx.

Provisions are mcasured at the management's best estimate ol-the expenditurc required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date and are discountcd to presenl valuc where the
effect is material.
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 202I.

NOTES TO THE FINA|ICIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
6(a).TRANSFERS FROM
NATIONAL GOVERNMENT
MINISTRIES

KShs KShs

Description 2020-2021 2019-2020

Unconditional grants

Capitation r6,395,000 12,735,000

Capitation 16,395,000 2,602,500

Capitation 10,807.500 2,122,500

Capitation 16.230.000 2,362,500

59,827,500 19,822,500

Conditional qrants

Workshop grants 4,075,600
Workshop grants

Total government grants and
subsidies 59,827,500 23,898,100

6(b) Name of the entity
sending grants

Amount
recognized to
Statement of

Comprehensive
Income ks

Amount
deferred

under
defcrred

income

Amount
recognised
in capital

fund.

Total
grant

income
during

the year

201912020

KShs KShs KShs KShs KShs
State Department Of
Technical Training 59,827,500

59,827,500
23,898, I 00

Total 59,827,500 0 59.827.500 23,898,100

T.TRANSFERS FROM OTHER LEVELS OF GOVERNMENT

Unconditional grants

2020-202t 2019-2020

Transfer from CDF 0.00 0

Total 0
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2020-202t 2019-2020

Description
Activity fee 3,827,437 654,458

Adminstration 163,902

KUCCPS placement fee 915,000

Electricity water and conservancy 592,415 559,994

Exams I,987,410 6,593,494

Industrail attachments/insurance 4,397,000 759,469

Local travel and transport 4,376,010 534,553

Mecha tronic Training

Personal emoluments 1,927,680 1,926,735

Registration 94,900

Repair maintainance and
imDrovements

2,410,104 464,240

Student identy card 121,400

Tuition 5,273,040 24,906,621

Total revenue from rendering of
serviccs

26,122,396 36,563,465

MUKIRIA TBCI{NICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL S'fATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTIJ JUNE 2O2I.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. RENDERING OF SBRVICE,S

9. SALE OF GOODS/OTHER INCOME

Description 2020-2021 2019-2020

KShs KShs

Cosmetoogy sales 5,560

Gown fee 272,422

Smaft card 9,000

Hotel sales 42,575 42,940

Bus hire 76,000 125,000

Agriculture production units 1,000 470

Tender sales 2,000

seats hire 2.500

124,075 455,392

10. HIRE OF FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT/RENTAL INCOMB
Description 2020-2021 20t9-2020

KShs KShs

Hire Of Facility 12,000

Hostel 0 21,000

12.000.00 2l,000
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MUKIRIA TBCHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FoR THE YEAR ENDED 30ru JUNE 202r.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

lla.USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES

2020-2021 2019-2020
DESCRIPTION KShs KShs
Activity 579,870 1,604.420
Administration 2,537,677 1,557,265
Agriculture production units 700 18,950

Attachments 295,000
Automation 660,000 659.000
Bank charges 146,4s2 137,321
Bus hire 8,000
Commonwealth association of
polyechnic in africa suscription s7.000
Electricity water and conseryancy 480,799 618.231
Exam 9,376,809 2.159.230
Students wellfare r 00.200
Graduation 1,426,560
Internets services t77,434 149,653

international standard organisation
certification (iso) 1,143,540
Kenya association of technical training 60,000
value added tax witholding 186,083
Local travel and transport 2.173.593 2,047,668
Marketing 666,765 I,l5 1.713
Medical fees 213,252
Performance contracts 406,760 521,100
Tuition expenses 10,297.903 3.364.014
Robotics/Trade fair 612,711
Students Welfare 100,200
Telephone/communication 362.8s6 309, I 00
Training/developments 871.79s 2,348,680
Total 28,739,402 20.848.891

r l b). AUDrT FEES

KShs KShs

2020-2021 2019-2020

Audit fees 660,267 660,267

Total 660,267 660,267
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TITAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL S'fA]'tJMENTS
FoR THE YEAR ENDED 30" JUNE 2021.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I2.EMPLOYEE COSTS

13. REMUNERATION OF DIRE,CTORS

14. DEI'RECIATIONANDAMOIITIZATIONE,XI'ENSE

15. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

KShs KShs

DESCRIPTION 2020-2021

KShs

2019-2020

Name KShs
Hclb deductions 104,476 134,022
National sccurity social fund 207,947 332.984
Nita lcvy 5,750 17.450
Nationalllospital insurance fund 217,270 286.750
Paye as you earn 335,803 101,434
Personal emoluments 5,852,210 9,641,029
Partime teaching

Total 6,723,456 10,513.669

Description KShs KShs

2020-2021 2019-2020
Board of governers allowances r. r r7.000 869,000
Total remuncration of dircctors I ,l 1 7,000 869,000

Description 2020-2021 2019-2020

KShs KShs

Property, plant and equipment 8,894.479 8,583,271.00

Total depreciation and amortization 8,894,479 8,583,271

Description 2020-2021 20t9-2020
KShs KShs

Repairs and Maintenance 3,247,685 2,856,614
Total Repairs and Maintenance 3,247,685 2,856,614
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAI- S'l'A'l'l1MEN]'S
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTII JIJNE 202I.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. CONTRACTED SERVICES

ITa.CASH AND CASH EQUMLENTS

Description 2020-2021 2019-2020

KShs KShs
Sanitary services 42,000

Security services 456,000 433,200

Total contracted services 498,000.00 433,200

Description 2020-2021 2019-2020

KShs KShs
Currcnt account

Cooperative bank 12,497,325 I t,338,631

National bank developments acconuts
4.318.523 4,322,373

National bank recurrents accounts 39,488,984 3,614,576
National bank Igembe Central TVC 3,330,215 0

Cash at hand 5,t70 24,500
Total cash and cash equivalents 59,640,217 19,300,079

17 (a). DETAILED ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASTI EQUIVALENTS

2020-2021 2019-2020
Financial institution KShs KShs
a) Current account Accounts number
Cooperativc bank 0l 12902t 590500 12,497,325

4,31,8,523

I r,338.63 r

National bank developments accounts
01071226198200 4,322,373

National bank recurrents accounts 01248040062400 39,488,984 3,614,576
National bank Igembe Central TVC
Sub- total

0t0222r 8425000 3,330,215

19,275,57959,635,047

b) Others(specify)
cash in hand 5,1 70 24,500
Unsurendered imprest 0 0

Sub- total 5,1 70 24,500
Grand total 59,640,217 19,300,079
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MUKIRIA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FoR THE YEAR ENDED:orH luNp 202t.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)

18. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Description 2020-2021 2019-2020

KShs KShs

Current receivables

Student debtors 70.333.r r0 45.503.871

Total receivables 70,333,1l0 45,503,871

19. R-ECEIVABLES FROM NON.EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Description 2020-2021 2019-2020

KShs KShs

Current receivables

Transfers from other govt. entities

Total current receivables 0.00 0

2O.INVENTORIES

Consumable stores

2020-2021 2019-2020

Total inventories at the lower of cost
and net realizablc value

24
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22a.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Description 2020-2021 2019-2020

KShs KShs

Trade payables 3,795,946 589,084

Fees paid in advance 7,243,001 7,207,109

Other payables 27,474,550 12,735,002

Total trade and other payables 38,513,497 20,531,195

22 (b) PROVTSTON FOR AUDrT FEES

23. REFUNDABLEDEPOSITSFROMCUSTOMERS/STUDENTS
Description 2020-2021 2019-2020

KShs KShs

Caution money 442,000 442,000

Total deposits 442,000 442,000

24. DEFERRED INCOME

25.Transfer to Igembe technical training institute

Description 2020 -2021 2019 -2020

Kshs Kshs

Balance b/f 01.07 1,320,534 660,267

Additional provisions 660,267 660,267

Total Provisions as at 30.06.2021 1.980.801 1,320,534

National government

Total deferred income

2020-2021 20t9-2020

DESCRIPTION KShs KShs

Developments grants
20,000,000

10,000,000
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I I. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

'fhc Institutc's activitics exposc it to a varicty of financial risks including credit and liquidity
risks and cffects of changes in foreign currency. 1'he company's overall risk management
programmc focuscs on unprcdictability of changcs in the business environment and seeks to
minimise thc potential adversc effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable
levcls of risk. l'hc company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that
credit is only extcnded to customers with an established credit history.

Thc Institute's financial risk management objectivcs and policies arc detailed below:

(i) Credit risk

'l'he Institutc has exposure to crcdit risk, which is thc risk that a countcrparty will bc unable
to pay amounts in full whcn duc. Crcdit risk ariscs from cash and cash equivalents, and
dcposits with banks, as well as trade and othcr reccivables and available-for-sale financial
investmcnts.

Managcmcnt assesscs the credit quality of cach customcr, taking into account its financial
position, past cxpcricncc and othcr l'actors. Individual risk limits arc sct bascd on internal or
cxlcrnal asscssmcnt in accordancc with limits set by the dircctors. 'l'he amounts prescnted in
thc statcment ol financial position are nct of allowances for doubtful rcceivables, estimated
by thc company's managcment bascd on prior expericnce and thcir assessment of the
current econom ic cnvironment.

'l'hc carrying amount of financial asscts recorded in the financial statcments representing
the Institute's maximum cxposurc to credit risk without taking account of thc value of any
collatcral obtained is made up as follows:

'l'he customcrs undcr the fully pcrforming catcgory are paying thcir debts as they continue
trading. 'fhe credit risk associatcd with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollcctiblc amounts that the company has recognised in the financial statements is
considcred adcquatc to covcr any potcntially irrccovcrable amounts.

Ileccivables from exchangc
transactions 70.333.r r0 70.333,r r0

Ilank balanccs
59.640.2t7 59.640.2t7

'[otal 129,973,327 129,973.327
At 30.Iunc 2020
Rcceivables from exchangc
transactions

45,503,871 45,503,971

lJank balanccs r 9,300,079 19,300,079
Total 64,803,950 64,803,950
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The Institute has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from students.
The board of governors sets the company's credit policics and objectives and lays down
parameters within which the various aspccts of credit risk management are operatcd.

(ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Institute's directors,
who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Institute's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. 'fhe Institute manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of
forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivative
financial liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due

within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as thc impact of discounting is not
significant.

(iiD Market risk

The Institute has put in place an intcrnal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced
by the Institute on an ongoing basis, cvaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its
internal accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market priccs, such as intercst rate, equity
prices and foreign exchange ratcs which will affect the Institute's income or the value of its
holding of financial instruments. 'l'he objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposurcs within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rcsts with the Audit and Risk
Managemcnt Committee. 'l'he Institute's Finance Department is responsible for the
development of detailed risk management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit
and Risk Management Committee) and for the day to day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the Institute's exposure to market risks or the manner in which
it manages and measures the risk.

At 30 Junc 2021

Trade payables 18,295,496 r0,807,500 9,4 10,501
38,5t3,497

Provisions r,980,80 r r,980,80 r

442,000
442.000

40.936.298

Refundablc
customers

dcposits from

Total 18,295,496 10,807.500 I I,833,302
At 30.Iune 2020

20.531,195Trade payablcs 20,531,195
Provisions 1,320,534 1,320,534

442,000deposits fromRefundablc
customcrs

442,000

Total 22.293.729 22.293,729
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a) Irorcign currcncy risk

'l'hc Institutc has transactional currcncy cxposures. Such exposurc arises through purchases of
goods and scrvices that arc donc in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices
dcnominated in loreign currencics are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoicc and
conversion at thc time of paymcnt is donc using the prevailing cxchange rate.

'l'hc Institulc managcs ficrcign cxchangc risk from futurc commcrcial transactions and
rccogniscd asscts and tiabilitics by projccting lor cxpcctcd salcs proceeds and matching thc
samc with cxpccted paymcnts.

b) Interesl ratc risk

Intcrcst ratc risk is thc risk that thc Institute's financial condition may be adversely affected
as a rcsult of changes in interest rate lcvcls.'fhe company's intercst rate risk arises from bank
dcposits. 'fhis cxposes the company to cash flow intcrest ratc risk. The interest rate risk
exposurc ariscs mainly from intcrcsl. rate movements on the company's deposits.

Management oJ'interest rale risk
'l'o managc thc intcrcsl ratc risk, managcmcnt has endeavoured to bank with institutions that
ollcr favourablc interest ratcs.

Sensitivily analysis

'l'he lnstitutc analyscs its intercst rate cxposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a
scnsitivity analysis.'l'his involvcs dctcrmining thc impact on profit or loss of defined rate
shifts.'l'hc scnsitivity analysis ficr intcrcsl ratc risk assumcs that all other variablcs, in
particular l'orcign cxchangc ratcs, remain conslant. 'l'hc analysis has bcen pcrformcd on thc
samc basis as the prior ycar.

iv) Capital Risk Management

'l'hc objcctivc of the Institutc's capital risk managemcnt is to sal'cguard the Institute's
ability to continuc as a going concern.'l-hc Institute capital structure comprises of the
lollowing I'unds:

2020-2021 2019-2020
Kshs Kshs

Reserves 75.558.92 r 28.323.t67
Accumulatcd lrund 64.528.849 55.558.92 I
Total Iunds 140,087,770 83,882,088

Total borrowings
[,css: cash and bank balanccs (s9,640,217 ) ( r 9,300,07e)

Nct dcbt/(exccss cash and cash cquivalcnts) 80,447,553 54,507,252
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NOTES TO THB FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. RELATED PARTY BALANCES

Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the Institute include those parties who have ability to
exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.

Related parties include management personnel, their associates and close family members.

Government of Kenya

The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the Institute, holding 100% of the Institute's
equity interest. The Govemment of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long-term lenders of the

Institute, both domestic and external. Other related parlies include:

i) The National Government;
ii) The Parent Ministry;
iii) Key management;
iv) Board of Governors;

The transactions and balances with re lated parties during the year are as

13. CAPITALCOMMITMENTS

Transactions with related narties
Training and conference fees paid to govt. agencies

Others (specify)
Total
a) Grants /Transfers from thc Government
Grants from National Govt 79,827,500 23,898,900
Grants from County Government
Donations in kind 0

Total 79,827,500 23,898,900

b) Expenses incurred on behalfofrelated party
6,723,456Payments of salaries and wages for BOG employees

Total 6.723.456
c) Kev management comDensation
Directors' emoluments I,t 17,000 869,000
Compensation to key management

l.l 17.000 869.000Total

Authorised for

Authorised and contracted for
Total
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14. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

15. ULTIMATE AND HOLDING INSTITUTE

The Institute is a State Corporationl or a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the
Ministry of Education. Its ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

I6. CURRENCY
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).
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APPENDIX 1: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary ol issues raised by thc cxternal auditor, and management comments
that were provided to the auditor.

Guidonce Noles:

(i) Use the same reference numbers as contained in the external audit report;

(ii) Obtain the "lssue/Observation" and "management comments", required above, from final

external audit report that is signed by Management;

(iii) Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point persons

within your Institute responsible for implementation of each issue;

(iv) Indicate the status of "Resolved" or "Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this report to

National Treasury.

Accounting Officer

Mrs Carolyne K. Muguna
Secretary to the Board/Principal

g".g
Signature
Date.02l08/2022
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API,ENDIX III: INTER-INSTITUTE TRANSFERS

The abovc amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent Ministry

Financc Managcr
Mukiria'l'echnical Institute

ft

I lead of Accounting Unit
Ministry of Education

INSTITUTE
NAME: Mukiria'l'echnical'l'raining Institutc

Break down of -I'ransfers from the State Department of technical and vocational training

FY 2020t2021

a. capitation Grants

Ilank Statement Date Amount (KShs)
Indicate the FY
to which the
amounts relate

6/fi/2020 16,395,000 2020/2021

91n12020 16,395,000 2020/2022

30/03/2021 10,807,500 202012021

30106/2021 16,230,000 2020/2021

Total 59,827,500

b.
Dcvclopmcnt
Grants

Bank Statement Datc Amount (KShs)
ndicate

to which the
amounts relate

Igcmbc Central
.IVC 9/0912020 20.000.000 2020/2021

Total 0

c. Direct Payments

Ilank Statement Date Amount (KShs)
Indi the FY
to which the
amounts relate

Total 0

d Donor Receipts

Bank Statement Date Amount (KShs)
Indicate the FY
to which the
amounts relate

Total 0

Sign
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